
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  
711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 
 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

April 18
th

, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

  1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
  2-REPORTS 

Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 
 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 
  4-CONSENT AGENDA 

TAB H  Minutes of April 4th, 2012 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
TAB I  Resolution/Ridgeway Farms [Secondary Road Addition] - J. Mark Wood, P.E., L.S. Land Development 

Engineer 
 
    5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

  None 
 
   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

TAB J  VDOT Secondary Six-Year Plan for Fiscal Years 2012/13 through 2017/18 and the Secondary System 
Construction Budget for Fiscal Year 2012/13[adopt resolution] – Greg Banks, VDOT Secondary 
Programming Coordinator & David Crim, VDOT Residency Administrator 
     

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

  Update on Reassessment – Matt Hickey, Blue Ridge Mass Appraisal  
 
   8-ACTION MATTERS 

TAB K  Resolution/Capital Improvements Plan [adoption of] – Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 
TAB L  Resolution/FY13 Budget Adoption, Set Tax Rates and Appropriate Funds – Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 

  
  9-UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 Discussion of RFP for potential Zion Crossroads water line. 
 

10-NEW BUSINESS 

 
11-PUBIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 
 12-CLOSED MEETING 

    
13-ADJOURN 

  



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  
711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 
 

 
********** 

Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  
of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  
one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 
********** 

ORDER 

 
1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of order in 

preference to all other members. 
 
2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after 

the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 
bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such tactics.  
The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 

 

4.    When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order the  
       person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 



 

 

MOTION: I move the regular meeting minutes of the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors for Wednesday, April 4, 2012 be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  April 4, 2012 

 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Shaun V. Kenney, Board of Supervisors, Chairman 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 1 

 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Court Room 

April 4, 2012 

2:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 

Bob Ullenbruch, Vice-Chairman  

    Mozell H. Booker 

Donald W. Weaver  

    Joe Chesser 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Fred Payne, County Attorney 

    Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 

    Melissa Marks, Senior Finance Assistant 

Bobby Popowicz, Economic Development Director 

Patricia A. Groot, Grants Administrator 

Susan Muir, Social Services Director 

Linda Lenherr, Treasurer 

    Mary Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Kenney called the meeting of April 4

th
, 2012, to order at 2:00 p.m., in the Circuit 

Courtroom in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited, after which, 

Chairman Kenney called for a moment of silence. 

 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR APPOINTMENT 

MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver moved to approve and authorize this agreement executed by 

resolution [attached hereto] of the Board of Supervisors to hire Steven M. Nichols 

as County Administrator.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote 

of 5-0.  AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS:  None. 

ABSENT: None. 

Chairman Kenney welcomed Mr. Nichols and his family. 

 

REPORTS 

County Report 

Chairman Kenney reported on the following topics: 

 Route 15 & Route 53 Roundabout - could possibly be on the VDOT Six Year Plan. 

 Letter of Intent for Aqua Virginia – outlines their scope of understanding and what they 

would like to achieve. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 

Chairman Kenney opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 1 
 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Court Room 
April 4, 2012 

2:00 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 

Bob Ullenbruch, Vice-Chairman  
    Mozell H. Booker 

Donald W. Weaver  
    Joe Chesser 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Fred Payne, County Attorney 
    Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 
    Melissa Marks, Senior Finance Assistant 

Bobby Popowicz, Economic Development Director 
Patricia A. Groot, Grants Administrator 
Susan Muir, Social Services Director 
Linda Lenherr, Treasurer 

    Mary Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Kenney called the meeting of April 4th, 2012, to order at 2:00 p.m., in the Circuit 
Courtroom in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited, after which, 
Chairman Kenney called for a moment of silence. 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR APPOINTMENT 

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved to approve and authorize this agreement executed by 
resolution [attached hereto] of the Board of Supervisors to hire Steven M. Nichols 
as County Administrator.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote 
of 5-0.  AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS:  None. 
ABSENT: None. 

Chairman Kenney welcomed Mr. Nichols and his family. 
 
REPORTS 
County Report 
Chairman Kenney reported on the following topics: 
 Route 15 & Route 53 Roundabout - could possibly be on the VDOT Six Year Plan. 
 Letter of Intent for Aqua Virginia – outlines their scope of understanding and what they 

would like to achieve. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 
Chairman Kenney opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 2 

 

 Chris Kern, Cunningham District – addressed the Board in reference to the lack of a 

speed limit sign on Aldridge Way.  Would like to see a speed study done. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the first round of public comments. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following item was pulled from the consent agenda: 

 Authorization to bid the Pleasant Grove House and Western Trailhead Grant Projects. 

 

The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 

 MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver moved to approve the consent agenda, which consisted of: 

 Budget Work Session Minutes from March 14, 2012. 

 Budget Work Session Minutes from March 17, 2012. 

 Minutes from March 21, 2012. 

 Approval of Fire Engine for the Fork Union Fire Company. 

 Resolution/National Crime Victims’ Rights Week. 

 FY12 Budget Supplement/PREP Grant for Schools. 

 Approve Retiree Health Care Plan. 

Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  

Ullenbruch, Booker, Kenney, Chesser and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

None. 

 

Authorization to bid the Pleasant Grove House and Western Trailhead Grant Projects: 

Mr. Weaver addressed his concern on the tracking of the funds that comes in for grants.   

MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved the Board of Supervisors authorize staff to advertise for 

construction bids for the renovation of the Pleasant Grove House and the Heritage 

Trail Western Trailhead parking area and comfort station, contingent upon 

approval of plans by VDOT.  Mr. Chesser seconded. The motion carried, with a 

vote of 3-2. AYES: Chesser, Booker, and Kenney. NAYS: Ullenbruch and 

Weaver. ABSENT: None. 

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

Melissa Marks, Senior Finance Assistant, addressed the Board regarding the accounts payable.  

MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver moved the Accounts Payable from February 29, 2012, through 

March 26, 2012, and Payroll for the month of February, 2012, in the amount of 

$1,362,257.37, be ratified. Mr. Chesser seconded. The motion carried, with a vote 

of 5-0. AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS: 

None. ABSENT: None. 
 

General Fund         $613,818.47 

Federal Grants         $     5,931.20 

Capital Improvements       $   52,923.58 

Debt Service        $   43,268.94 

Sewer         $     1,650.75 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 3 

 
Fork Union Sanitary District   $      12,712.91 

 

Total Expenditures by Fund   $    730,305.85 

Payroll – February   $    631,951.52 

Total Payables & Payroll    $ 1,362,257.37 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
None 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

VDOT Secondary Six-Year – Mr. David Crim, VDOT Residency Administrator, reviewed with 

the Board some upcoming Public Hearings and the temporary closure of the US 250 Shadwell 

Bridge in May.  Mr. Crim is leaving VDOT, as of April 24, 2012.  Mr. Greg Banks, VDOT 

Secondary Programming Coordinator, gave an overview of the existing projects, along with 

projects and priorities for future scheduling, on the VDOT Secondary Six-Year Plan.   Mr. Banks 

requested the Board to let him know what roads they would consider priorities for the VDOT 

Secondary Six-Year Plan.  The Board would like to see Route 715, Stag Road; and Route 606, 

Hells Bend Road, put on the Secondary Six-Year Plan. 

 

Public Works Update and DEQ Violation Notices – Mr. Bobby Popowicz, Acting Public Works 

Director, updated the Board in reference to the violations at the Omohundro Well Plant and the 

Morris Well Plant.  The violations are in the process of being corrected.  Mr. Popowicz 

commended the Public Works and Facility staff for the great job they are doing.  The Public 

Works and Facilities Departments are working on standard operating procedures and an 

inventory of salvage items for auction.   

 

Return on Investment/Waterline at Zions Cross Roads – Mr. Steve Williams, Executive Director 

at Thomas Jefferson District Commission, and Mr. William Cockerel, Regional Planner at 

Thomas Jefferson District Commission, reviewed with the Board a summary of the results of the 

Return on Investment Study for the proposed waterline extension to the Zion Crossroads 

Community Planning Area.  The future scenarios were estimated to have a Net Revenue on a ten 

year planning horizon:  

  No Waterline           - $  5,588,557 

  Slow Growth  $  1,352,025 

  Moderate Growth $  4,625,802 

  Expected Growth $  8,935,454 

  Optimal Growth $14,704,467 

A written report will be created, once input is received from the Board.   

 

ACTION MATTERS 
Proclamation/Proclaiming April, 2012 “Celebrating Children’s Month” – Mrs. Susan Muir, 

Social Services Director, informed the Board of the annual Celebrating Children Daycare Fair, at 

the Fluvanna County Middle School, on April 21, 2012, from 10 a.m. to 12 p.m.  

Ms. Karen Hebert, Ms. Shannon Wilson, Mr. Jamie Vest, and Ms. Sarah Hill addressed the 

Board, with a short presentation of what Child Protective Services offers the residents in 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 4 

 

Fluvanna County, and requested proclaiming April “Celebrating Children’s Month”, in 

recognition of “Child Abuse Prevention Month,” and the work done in Fluvanna County.  

MOTION:  

Ms. Booker moved to approve the proclamation [attached hereto] proclaiming the 

month of April, 2012, as “Celebrating Children Month,” in Fluvanna County, in 

observation of “Child Abuse Prevention Month”. Mr. Ullenbruch seconded. The 

motion carried, with a vote of 5-0. AYES: Ullenbruch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker 

and Kenney. NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 
 

Resolution/”Fair Housing Month” April, 2012 – Karen Reifenberger, Deputy Director of 

Piedmont Housing Alliance, Fair Housing Program Manager, with Piedmont Housing Alliance, 

addressed the Board regarding fair housing in the community.  

MOTION:  

Mr. Chesser moved to approve the resolution proclaiming the month of April, 

2012, as “Fair Housing Month” in Fluvanna County in support of equal housing 

opportunity. Mr. Weaver seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0. 

AYES: Ullenbruch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker, and Kenney. NAYS: None. 

ABSENT: None  

 

Shortfalls in the Health Care Fund – Mrs. Linda Lenherr reviewed with the Board a shortfall in 

the Health Care Fund, along with large claims that are anticipated.   

 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to approve that Shaun Kenney, as Chairman of the Board of 

Supervisors of Fluvanna County, be authorized to approve any transfers from the 

General Fund to the Health Insurance Fund, necessary to keep a balance of no less 

than $100,000.00 in such Health Insurance Fund.  Mr. Chesser seconded.  The 

motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney 

and Weaver. NAYS:  None. ABSENT: None. 

 

Reappointment/Jefferson Area Board for Aging Advisory Council  

MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to reappoint Mr. Richard Bucci to the Jefferson Area Board 

for Aging Advisory Council (JABA), with a term to begin May 1, 2012, and to 

terminate on April 30, 2014.  Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried, with a 

vote of 5-0.  AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS:  

None. ABSENT: None. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Capital Improvement Plan Clarification – Mr. Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst, requested the Board 

clarify where to locate the CIP items that were removed from the FY13 Budget.  The Board 

asked that all items be moved to the FY14 Budget, and planned to discuss at the April 11, 2012 

meeting. 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 5 

 

Reassessment Update – Mr. Weaver requested the Board to have the Blue Ridge Mass Appraisal 

Company report the progress of the reassessment.  The Board directed the Commissioner of 

Revenue to have them make a presentation to the Board, on April 18, 2012. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
Proration of Personal Property Tax – Chairman reviewed with the Board the possibility of 

prorating the Personal Property Tax.  Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney, explained to the Board 

the current procedure of collecting Personal Property Taxes.  After some discussion, the Board 

directed the Commissioner of Revenue to research the pros and cons of prorating the Personal 

Property Tax, and to bring a proposal to the Board. 

 

2
nd

 Fork Union Community Day – Mrs. Booker informed the Board of the Community Day on 

April 28, 2012, from 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. 

 

Vision Statement – Mrs. Booker would like to see the vision statement publicized more. 

 

Aqua Virginia Letter of Intent – Mr. Chesser suggested the next step would be to draft an RFP to 

create a public/private partnership, to deal with the Zion Crossroads water issue.  

 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to direct the Economic Development and County 

Administrator to draft an RFP to create a public/private partnership, to deal with 

the Zion Crossroads water issue. Mrs. Booker seconded. 

After some discussion from the Board, Mr. Chesser withdrew his motion; and Mrs. Booker 

agreed.  The Board requested to put the discussion of the RFP on the agenda, as unfinished 

business for the April 18, 2012, meeting. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 

Chairman Kenney opened the floor for the second round of public comments. 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Columbia District, speaking on behalf of the Fluvanna Tax Payers 

Association – requested the Board to make available all relevant information about any 

water proposals that are being considered. 

 Sonya Patterson, Fluvanna County – addressed the Board in regards to the proration of 

the personal property taxes. 

 Dennis Holder, Columbia District - addressed the Board in regards to the reassessment 

progress on the website and the density in the Zion Crossroads area. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the second segment of public 

comments. 

 

Mrs. Booker wanted to iterate that we are striving for the waterline not to be a burden on the 

taxpayers. 

 

CLOSED MEETING 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING: 

At 5:00 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 

into a closed meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2-3711 of the Code 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 6 

 

of Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of discussing Legal Matters, 

regarding consultation with legal counsel about specific legal matters, requiring 

the provision of legal advice by such counsel and possible personnel.  Mr. 

Ullenbruch seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, 

Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 

 

MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION: 

At 5:57 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the 

Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors reconvene again in open session. Mr. 

Chesser seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, 

Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 

 

MOTION: 

At 5:58 p.m., the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County Board 

of Supervisors, following a closed meeting held Wednesday, April 4, 2012, on 

motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mrs. Booker, and carried by the following 

vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver, and Chesser. NAYS: 

None. ABSENT: None. 

 
“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 

from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 

and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting 

was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.” 

 

MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver moved to ratify the decision made in closed session to adopt the 

Contribution Schedule below for contributions to the County of Fluvanna’s 

employees health care coverage costs effective July 1, 2012 under the Local 

Choice Plan.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  

AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS:  None. 

ABSENT: None. 

 

Contribution 

Schedule 

 
Total Cost 

Employee Only 

Plan     

KA250  $621.00 

KA 500  $570.00 

HDHP  $477.00 

Employee/1 Minor    

 

County 

Pays 
Employee 

Pays 
Employee 

Increase 

 
      

 $537.00 $84.00 $58.26 

 $512.09 $57.91 $33.77 

 $449.39 $27.61 $5.45 

       



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 7 

 

KA 250  $1,149.00 

KA 500  $1,055.00 

HDHP  $882.00 

Employee/Spouse    

KA 250  $1,149.00 

KA 500  $1,055.00 

HDHP  $882.00 

Employee/Family    

KA 250  $1,677.00 

KA 500  $1,539.00 

HDHP  $1,288.00 
 

 $797.21 $351.79 $174.83 

 $769.85 $285.15 $119.55 

 $668.73 $213.27 $61.27 

       

 $797.21 $351.79 -$35.99 

 $769.85 $285.15 -$77.23 

 $668.73 $213.27 -$119.30 

       

 $1,053.71 $623.29 $171.15 

 $1,014.69 $524.31 $102.15 

 $873.89 $414.11 $26.65 

 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 6:00 p.m., Mr. Chesser moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, April 4, 

2012. Mr. Weaver seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: 

Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  

None. 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:    FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

__________________               

Mary L. Weaver, Clerk  Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 

 
  



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 8 

 

RESOLUTION 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA COUNTY 

that Steven M. Nichols be engaged as County Administrator, in accordance with the terms of a 

certain contract of employment, dated March 26, 2012, a true copy of which is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the said contract be, and it is hereby, APPROVED 

AND RATIFIED in accordance with its text. 

 

Clerk’s Certification 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of the resolution adopted by 

the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County on April 4, 2012, by motion made by Mr. Weaver, 

seconded by Mrs. Booker and carried by a vote of 5 members in favor, none opposed. 

 

      ________________________________________ 

      Mary Weaver 

      Clerk of the Board of Supervisors  



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 9 

 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 10 

 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 11 

 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 12 

 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 13 

 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 14 

 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 15 

 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 16 

 

RESOLUTION 

National Crime Victims’ Rights Week 

 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held on 

Wednesday, April 4, 2012, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following resolution was adopted on a motion 

by Mr. Chesser, seconded by Mrs. Booker, and voted in the affirmative: 

  

 WHEREAS, over 18 million Americans are victims of crime each year, suffering physical and 

emotional injury, as well as financial loss, and each victim’s pain touches family, friends, coworkers 

and the community; 

 

 WHEREAS, 30 years have passed since the President’s Task Force on Victims of Crime 

sought to afford a fair, compassionate approach to crime victims - informing victims of their rights, 

treating them with compassion, and providing emotional and financial support to those in need; 

  

 WHEREAS, while brave victims and dedicated victim advocates across the country are 

increasing awareness and reaching more victims, public understanding of victims’ rights remains 

minimal, and our nation’s victim services system remains fragmented and underfunded; 

 

 WHEREAS, these 30 years have taught us that by working together, we can help meet the 

needs of victims of crime with respect and dignity and to support them as they seek to overcome their 

challenges and regain control over their lives; 

 

 WHEREAS, thousands of victim assistance programs now provide help and support to child 

victims of violence and sexual abuse; stalking victims; survivors of homicide victims; victims of 

drunk-driving crashes; victims of burglaries and larcenies, and victims of domestic, dating, and 

sexual violence, as well as other crimes; 

 

 WHEREAS, National Crime Victims’ Rights Week, April 22-28, provides an opportunity for 

us to reaffirm our commitment to victims by honoring the improvements that have been made, while 

working to extend the vision and to reach every victim; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Fluvanna Victim/Witness Assistance Program is joining forces with 

victim service programs, criminal justice officials, and concerned citizens throughout Fluvanna 

County and the Commonwealth of Virginia to raise awareness of victims’ rights and observe 

National Crime Victims’ Rights Week; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

does hereby proclaim the week of April 22-28, 2012 as Crime Victims’ Rights Week and reaffirms 

our commitment to respect and enforce victims’ rights and address their needs during National Crime 

Victims’ Rights Week and throughout the year. 

 

  

_______________________________   ______________________ 

Chairman       Date    

Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 17 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 

 April 4, 2012 

Page 18 

 

 



 

 

MOTION: I move to adopt the resolution entitled “Secondary Road Additions to 
Ridgeway Farms” be adopted.  
 
 
AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  APRIL 18

th
, 2012 

 

 

SUBJECT: Resolution/Secondary Road Additions to Ridgeway Farms [which 
includes West View Lane, West Ridge Court, Red Maple Lane] 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Adoption of the Resolution 
 
TIMING: Routine  

 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 
 
DISCUSSION:  None. 
 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  The last several road additions adopted by the Board of 
Supervisors are as follows: 
 Oliver Creek Subdivision, Route 676, Fluvanna County additions to the 

Secondary System of State Highways [Oliver Ridge Lane] – September 2nd 2009 
 Better Living Drive, Route 1024 from Rt. 250 to 0.71 miles west to Rt. 1023, a 

distance of 0.71 miles – April 7th 2010 
 Secondary Road Additions to Sycamore Square [Justin Drive, Julie Way and 

Sydney Way] – September 15th 2010 
 Sycamore Landing Subdivision-Secondary Road Addition [Larkspur Road; 

Indigo Lane; Partridge Berry Lane; Trillium Lane] – October 20th 2010 
 Sycamore Landing Subdivision-Secondary Road Addition [Robins Court and 

extension of Justin Drive] March 21st 2012 
 
 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
Copy:  
Attachments:   Resolution 
  VDOT Form AM-4.3 
 
************************************** 
County Administrator’s Use Only 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Shaun V. Kenney, Board of Supervisors, Chairman 

 

 

 

 



 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
County of Fluvanna 

Palmyra, Virginia 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held 
on Wednesday, April 18th, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following action was taken: 
 
  Present     Vote 
  Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman    

Robert Ullenbruch, Vice Chairman   
Mozell H. Booker     

  Joe Chesser      
  Donald W. Weaver     
             
 
 On a motion by _________ seconded by _______ and carried by a vote of ___ 
the following resolution was adopted. 

 

RESOLUTION 
Secondary Road Addition – Ridgeway Farms 

 
WHEREAS, the following additions to the Secondary System of State Highways, 
pursuant to the statutory provision or provisions cited, are hereby requested; the right of 
way for which, including additional easements for cuts, fills and drainage, as required, is 
hereby guaranteed. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED this Board request the Virginia Department of 
Transportation to add the street(s) described on the attached form AM-4.3 to the 
secondary system of state highways, pursuant to §33.1-229, Code of Virginia, and the 
Department’s Subdivision Street requirements, after receiving a copy of this resolution. 
 
Street Name and/or Route Number 
 West View Lane, State Route Number 1085 

Old Route Number:  0  From:  Rte 799   
To:  0.17 miles NE to West Ridge Court, a distance of:   0.17 miles   
Recordation Reference:  PB 406 Pg 540 Right of Way width (feet) = 50 ft 

 West View Lane, State Route Number 1085 
Old Route Number:  0  From:  West Ridge Court   
To:  0.08 miles N to Red Maple Lane, a distance of:   0.08 miles   
Recordation Reference:  PB 406 page 540 Right of Way width (feet) = 50 ft 

 West Ridge Court, State Route Number 1086 
Old Route Number: 0 From:  West View Lane 
To:  0.04 miles SE to end of cul de sac, a distance of: 0.04 miles 
Recordation Reference: PB 406 Pg 540 Right of Way width (feet) = 50 ft 

 Red Maple Lane, State Route Number 1087 
Old Route Number: 0 From:  West View Lane 
To:  0.08 miles E to end of cul de sac, a distance of: 0.08 miles 
Recordation Reference: PB 406 Pg 540 Right of Way width (feet) = 50 ft 

 West View Lane, State Route Number 1085 
Old Route Number: 0 From:  Red Maple Lane 
To:  0.06 miles N to end of cul de sac, a distance of: 0.06 miles 
Recordation Reference: PB 406 Pg 540 Right of Way width (feet) = 50 ft 
 



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to the 
Resident Engineer of the Virginia Department of Transportation. 
 
Adopted this 18th day of April 2012 
by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
       
Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 



 



 























Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 2 
 
 Chris Kern, Cunningham District – addressed the Board in reference to the lack of a 

speed limit sign on Aldridge Way.  Would like to see a speed study done. 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the first round of public comments. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
The following item was pulled from the consent agenda: 
 Authorization to bid the Pleasant Grove House and Western Trailhead Grant Projects. 

 
The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver moved to approve the consent agenda, which consisted of: 
 Budget Work Session Minutes from March 14, 2012. 
 Budget Work Session Minutes from March 17, 2012. 
 Minutes from March 21, 2012. 
 Approval of Fire Engine for the Fork Union Fire Company. 
 Resolution/National Crime Victims’ Rights Week. 
 FY12 Budget Supplement/PREP Grant for Schools. 
 Approve Retiree Health Care Plan. 

Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  
Ullenbruch, Booker, Kenney, Chesser and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  
None. 

 
Authorization to bid the Pleasant Grove House and Western Trailhead Grant Projects: 
Mr. Weaver addressed his concern on the tracking of the funds that comes in for grants.   

MOTION: 
Mrs. Booker moved the Board of Supervisors authorize staff to advertise for 
construction bids for the renovation of the Pleasant Grove House and the Heritage 
Trail Western Trailhead parking area and comfort station, contingent upon 
approval of plans by VDOT.  Mr. Chesser seconded. The motion carried, with a 
vote of 3-2. AYES: Chesser, Booker, and Kenney. NAYS: Ullenbruch and 
Weaver. ABSENT: None. 

 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
Melissa Marks, Senior Finance Assistant, addressed the Board regarding the accounts payable.  

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved the Accounts Payable from February 29, 2012, through 
March 26, 2012, and Payroll for the month of February, 2012, in the amount of 
$1,362,257.37, be ratified. Mr. Chesser seconded. The motion carried, with a vote 
of 5-0. AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS: 
None. ABSENT: None. 

 
General Fund         $613,818.47 
Federal Grants         $     5,931.20 
Capital Improvements       $   52,923.58 
Debt Service        $   43,268.94 
Sewer         $     1,650.75 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 3 
 

Fork Union Sanitary District   $      12,712.91 
 
Total Expenditures by Fund   $    730,305.85 
Payroll – February   $    631,951.52 
Total Payables & Payroll    $ 1,362,257.37 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
None 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
VDOT Secondary Six-Year – Mr. David Crim, VDOT Residency Administrator, reviewed with 
the Board some upcoming Public Hearings and the temporary closure of the US 250 Shadwell 
Bridge in May.  Mr. Crim is leaving VDOT, as of April 24, 2012.  Mr. Greg Banks, VDOT 
Secondary Programming Coordinator, gave an overview of the existing projects, along with 
projects and priorities for future scheduling, on the VDOT Secondary Six-Year Plan.   Mr. Banks 
requested the Board to let him know what roads they would consider priorities for the VDOT 
Secondary Six-Year Plan.  The Board would like to see Route 715, Stag Road; and Route 606, 
Hells Bend Road, put on the Secondary Six-Year Plan. 
 
Public Works Update and DEQ Violation Notices – Mr. Bobby Popowicz, Acting Public Works 
Director, updated the Board in reference to the violations at the Omohundro Well Plant and the 
Morris Well Plant.  The violations are in the process of being corrected.  Mr. Popowicz 
commended the Public Works and Facility staff for the great job they are doing.  The Public 
Works and Facilities Departments are working on standard operating procedures and an 
inventory of salvage items for auction.   
 
Return on Investment/Waterline at Zions Cross Roads – Mr. Steve Williams, Executive Director 
at Thomas Jefferson District Commission, and Mr. William Cockerel, Regional Planner at 
Thomas Jefferson District Commission, reviewed with the Board a summary of the results of the 
Return on Investment Study for the proposed waterline extension to the Zion Crossroads 
Community Planning Area.  The future scenarios were estimated to have a Net Revenue on a ten 
year planning horizon:  
  No Waterline           - $  5,588,557 
  Slow Growth  $  1,352,025 
  Moderate Growth $  4,625,802 
  Expected Growth $  8,935,454 
  Optimal Growth $14,704,467 
A written report will be created, once input is received from the Board.   
 
ACTION MATTERS 
Proclamation/Proclaiming April, 2012 “Celebrating Children’s Month” – Mrs. Susan Muir, 
Social Services Director, informed the Board of the annual Celebrating Children Daycare Fair, at 
the Fluvanna County Middle School, on April 21, 2012, from 10 a.m. to 12 p.m.  
Ms. Karen Hebert, Ms. Shannon Wilson, Mr. Jamie Vest, and Ms. Sarah Hill addressed the 
Board, with a short presentation of what Child Protective Services offers the residents in 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 4 
 
Fluvanna County, and requested proclaiming April “Celebrating Children’s Month”, in 
recognition of “Child Abuse Prevention Month,” and the work done in Fluvanna County.  

MOTION:  
Ms. Booker moved to approve the proclamation [attached hereto] proclaiming the 
month of April, 2012, as “Celebrating Children Month,” in Fluvanna County, in 
observation of “Child Abuse Prevention Month”. Mr. Ullenbruch seconded. The 
motion carried, with a vote of 5-0. AYES: Ullenbruch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker 
and Kenney. NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 

 
Resolution/”Fair Housing Month” April, 2012 – Karen Reifenberger, Deputy Director of 
Piedmont Housing Alliance, Fair Housing Program Manager, with Piedmont Housing Alliance, 
addressed the Board regarding fair housing in the community.  

MOTION:  
Mr. Chesser moved to approve the resolution proclaiming the month of April, 
2012, as “Fair Housing Month” in Fluvanna County in support of equal housing 
opportunity. Mr. Weaver seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0. 
AYES: Ullenbruch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker, and Kenney. NAYS: None. 
ABSENT: None  
 

Shortfalls in the Health Care Fund – Mrs. Linda Lenherr reviewed with the Board a shortfall in 
the Health Care Fund, along with large claims that are anticipated.   
 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to approve that Shaun Kenney, as Chairman of the Board of 
Supervisors of Fluvanna County, be authorized to approve any transfers from the 
General Fund to the Health Insurance Fund, necessary to keep a balance of no less 
than $100,000.00 in such Health Insurance Fund.  Mr. Chesser seconded.  The 
motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney 
and Weaver. NAYS:  None. ABSENT: None. 

 
Reappointment/Jefferson Area Board for Aging Advisory Council  

MOTION: 
Mrs. Booker moved to reappoint Mr. Richard Bucci to the Jefferson Area Board 
for Aging Advisory Council (JABA), with a term to begin May 1, 2012, and to 
terminate on April 30, 2014.  Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried, with a 
vote of 5-0.  AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS:  
None. ABSENT: None. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Capital Improvement Plan Clarification – Mr. Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst, requested the Board 
clarify where to locate the CIP items that were removed from the FY13 Budget.  The Board 
asked that all items be moved to the FY14 Budget, and planned to discuss at the April 11, 2012 
meeting. 
 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 5 
 
Reassessment Update – Mr. Weaver requested the Board to have the Blue Ridge Mass Appraisal 
Company report the progress of the reassessment.  The Board directed the Commissioner of 
Revenue to have them make a presentation to the Board, on April 18, 2012. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Proration of Personal Property Tax – Chairman reviewed with the Board the possibility of 
prorating the Personal Property Tax.  Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney, explained to the Board 
the current procedure of collecting Personal Property Taxes.  After some discussion, the Board 
directed the Commissioner of Revenue to research the pros and cons of prorating the Personal 
Property Tax, and to bring a proposal to the Board. 
 
2nd Fork Union Community Day – Mrs. Booker informed the Board of the Community Day on 
April 28, 2012, from 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. 
 
Vision Statement – Mrs. Booker would like to see the vision statement publicized more. 
 
Aqua Virginia Letter of Intent – Mr. Chesser suggested the next step would be to draft an RFP to 
create a public/private partnership, to deal with the Zion Crossroads water issue.  
 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to direct the Economic Development and County 
Administrator to draft an RFP to create a public/private partnership, to deal with 
the Zion Crossroads water issue. Mrs. Booker seconded. 

After some discussion from the Board, Mr. Chesser withdrew his motion; and Mrs. Booker 
agreed.  The Board requested to put the discussion of the RFP on the agenda, as unfinished 
business for the April 18, 2012, meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 
Chairman Kenney opened the floor for the second round of public comments. 
 Elizabeth Franklin, Columbia District, speaking on behalf of the Fluvanna Tax Payers 

Association – requested the Board to make available all relevant information about any 
water proposals that are being considered. 

 Sonya Patterson, Fluvanna County – addressed the Board in regards to the proration of 
the personal property taxes. 

 Dennis Holder, Columbia District - addressed the Board in regards to the reassessment 
progress on the website and the density in the Zion Crossroads area. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the second segment of public 
comments. 
 
Mrs. Booker wanted to iterate that we are striving for the waterline not to be a burden on the 
taxpayers. 
 
CLOSED MEETING 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING: 
At 5:00 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 
into a closed meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2-3711 of the Code 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 6 
 

of Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of discussing Legal Matters, 
regarding consultation with legal counsel about specific legal matters, requiring 
the provision of legal advice by such counsel and possible personnel.  Mr. 
Ullenbruch seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, 
Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 

 
MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION: 

At 5:57 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors reconvene again in open session. Mr. 
Chesser seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, 
Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 
 

MOTION: 
At 5:58 p.m., the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County Board 
of Supervisors, following a closed meeting held Wednesday, April 4, 2012, on 
motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mrs. Booker, and carried by the following 
vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver, and Chesser. NAYS: 
None. ABSENT: None. 
 

“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 
and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting 
was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.” 
 

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved to ratify the decision made in closed session to adopt the 
Contribution Schedule below for contributions to the County of Fluvanna’s 

employees health care coverage costs effective July 1, 2012 under the Local 
Choice Plan.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  
AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS:  None. 
ABSENT: None. 

 

Contribution 
Schedule 

 
Total Cost 

Employee Only 
Plan     
KA250  $621.00 
KA 500  $570.00 
HDHP  $477.00 
Employee/1 Minor    

 

County 
Pays 

Employee 
Pays 

Employee 
Increase 

 
      

 $537.00 $84.00 $58.26 
 $512.09 $57.91 $33.77 
 $449.39 $27.61 $5.45 
       



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 7 
 
KA 250  $1,149.00 
KA 500  $1,055.00 
HDHP  $882.00 
Employee/Spouse    
KA 250  $1,149.00 
KA 500  $1,055.00 
HDHP  $882.00 
Employee/Family    
KA 250  $1,677.00 
KA 500  $1,539.00 
HDHP  $1,288.00 

 

 $797.21 $351.79 $174.83 
 $769.85 $285.15 $119.55 
 $668.73 $213.27 $61.27 
       
 $797.21 $351.79 -$35.99 
 $769.85 $285.15 -$77.23 
 $668.73 $213.27 -$119.30 
       
 $1,053.71 $623.29 $171.15 
 $1,014.69 $524.31 $102.15 
 $873.89 $414.11 $26.65 

 
ADJOURN 

MOTION: 
At 6:00 p.m., Mr. Chesser moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, April 4, 
2012. Mr. Weaver seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: 
Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  
None. 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST:    FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
__________________               
Mary L. Weaver, Clerk  Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 

 
  



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 8 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA COUNTY 

that Steven M. Nichols be engaged as County Administrator, in accordance with the terms of a 

certain contract of employment, dated March 26, 2012, a true copy of which is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the said contract be, and it is hereby, APPROVED 

AND RATIFIED in accordance with its text. 

 

Clerk’s Certification 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of the resolution adopted by 

the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County on April 4, 2012, by motion made by Mr. Weaver, 

seconded by Mrs. Booker and carried by a vote of 5 members in favor, none opposed. 

 

      ________________________________________ 
      Mary Weaver 

      Clerk of the Board of Supervisors  



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 9 
 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 10 
 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 11 
 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 12 
 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 13 
 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 14 
 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 15 
 

 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 16 
 

RESOLUTION 
National Crime Victims’ Rights Week 

 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held on 
Wednesday, April 4, 2012, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following resolution was adopted on a motion 
by Mr. Chesser, seconded by Mrs. Booker, and voted in the affirmative: 
  
 WHEREAS, over 18 million Americans are victims of crime each year, suffering physical and 
emotional injury, as well as financial loss, and each victim’s pain touches family, friends, coworkers 

and the community; 
 
 WHEREAS, 30 years have passed since the President’s Task Force on Victims of Crime 
sought to afford a fair, compassionate approach to crime victims - informing victims of their rights, 
treating them with compassion, and providing emotional and financial support to those in need; 
  
 WHEREAS, while brave victims and dedicated victim advocates across the country are 
increasing awareness and reaching more victims, public understanding of victims’ rights remains 

minimal, and our nation’s victim services system remains fragmented and underfunded; 
 
 WHEREAS, these 30 years have taught us that by working together, we can help meet the 
needs of victims of crime with respect and dignity and to support them as they seek to overcome their 
challenges and regain control over their lives; 
 
 WHEREAS, thousands of victim assistance programs now provide help and support to child 
victims of violence and sexual abuse; stalking victims; survivors of homicide victims; victims of 
drunk-driving crashes; victims of burglaries and larcenies, and victims of domestic, dating, and 
sexual violence, as well as other crimes; 

 
 WHEREAS, National Crime Victims’ Rights Week, April 22-28, provides an opportunity for 
us to reaffirm our commitment to victims by honoring the improvements that have been made, while 
working to extend the vision and to reach every victim; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Fluvanna Victim/Witness Assistance Program is joining forces with 
victim service programs, criminal justice officials, and concerned citizens throughout Fluvanna 
County and the Commonwealth of Virginia to raise awareness of victims’ rights and observe 
National Crime Victims’ Rights Week; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
does hereby proclaim the week of April 22-28, 2012 as Crime Victims’ Rights Week and reaffirms 

our commitment to respect and enforce victims’ rights and address their needs during National Crime 

Victims’ Rights Week and throughout the year. 
 
  
_______________________________   ______________________ 
Chairman       Date    
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 17 
 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 April 4, 2012 

Page 18 
 

 


	Agenda - April 18, 2012 BOS Meeting
	Minutes - April 4, 2012 BOS Meeting
	Resolution/Secondary Road Additions to Ridgeway Farms
	VDOT Secondary System 6-Year Plan
	Resolution - Capital Improvement Plan
	FY 2013 Operations Budget and Tax Rates
	Contingency Memo

